
 

 

 

 
Meeting 
 

Economy and Housing Policy Committee 
 

Date and Time 
 

Tuesday, 26th November, 2024 at 6.30 pm. 

Venue 
 
 

Walton Suite, Guildhall, Winchester and streamed live on 
YouTube at www.youtube.com/winchestercc 

Note: This meeting is being held in person at the location specified above.  Members 
of the public should note that a live video feed of the meeting will be available from 
the council’s YouTube channel ( youtube.com/WinchesterCC ) during the meeting.  
 
A limited number of seats will be made available at the above named location 
however attendance must be notified to the council at least 3 working days before 
the meeting (5pm Wednesday, 20 November 2024). Please see below for details on 
how to register to attend. Please note that priority will be given to those wishing to 
attend and address the meeting over those wishing to attend and observe. 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

1.   Apologies and Deputy Members  
 To note the names of apologies given and deputy members who are 

attending the meeting in place of appointed members. 
 

2.   Declarations of Interests  
 To receive any disclosure of interests from Members and Officers in matters 

to be discussed. 
 

Note:  Councillors are reminded of their obligations to declare disclosable 
pecuniary interests, and non disclosable interests in accordance with 
legislation and the Council’s Code of Conduct.        

 
If you require advice, please contact the appropriate Democratic Services 
Officer, prior to the meeting. 
 

3.   Chairperson's Announcements  
 

4.   Minutes of the previous meeting held on 17 September 2024 (Pages 5 - 
18) 

 That the minutes of the meeting be signed as a correct record. 
 

Public Document Pack

youtube.com/winchestercc


5.   Public Participation  
 To receive and note questions asked and statements made from members of 

the public on matters which fall within the remit of the Committee 
 

Members of the public and visiting councillors may speak at the Policy 
Committee, provided they have registered to speak three working days in 
advance.  Please complete this form (https://forms.office.com/r/Y87tufaV6G ) 
by 5pm on 20 November 2024 or call (01962) 848 264 for further details. 
 

6.   Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG): Policy Review (Presentation)  
  

(Presentation slides to follow) 
 

7.   Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan & Budget Options 
(Pages 19 - 44) 

  
The Economy and Housing Policy Committee are asked to comment on the 
proposals contained within the attached Cabinet Report, ref CAB 3478. 
 

8.   To note the Current Work Programme. (Pages 45 - 46) 
 

Laura Taylor 
Chief Executive 

 
All of the Council’s publicly available agendas, reports and minutes are 
available to view and download from the Council’s Website and are also open 
to inspection at the offices of the council.  As part of our drive to minimise our 
use of paper we do not provide paper copies of the full agenda pack at 
meetings. We do however, provide a number of copies of the agenda front 
sheet at the meeting which contains the QR Code opposite. Scanning this 
code enables members of the public to easily access all of the meeting papers 
on their own electronic device. Please hold your device’s camera or QR code 
App over the QR Code so that it's clearly visible within your screen and you 

will be redirected to the agenda pack. 

 

 
18 November 2024 
 
Agenda Contact: Matthew Watson, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01962 848 317  Email: mwatson@winchester.gov.uk 
 
*With the exception of exempt items, agendas, reports and previous minutes are available on the 
Council’s Website https://www.winchester.gov.uk/councillors-committees  

 

https://forms.office.com/r/Y87tufaV6G
https://forms.office.com/r/Y87tufaV6G
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/councillors-committees


MEMBERSHIP 
 
Chairperson: Councillor: Batho (Liberal Democrats) 
 
Vice Chairperson: Councillor Chamberlain (Liberal Democrats) 
 
 

Conservatives Liberal Democrats Green 
 

Miller 
 

Achwal S 
Eve 

Morris 
Murphy 

 

White 
 

 
Deputy Members 

Conservatives Liberal Democrats Green 
 

Horrill and Brook Aron and Brophy Lee and Wallace 
 

 
 
Quorum = 3 members 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
A public question and comment session is available at 6.30pm for a 15 minute 
period.  There are few limitations on the questions you can ask.  These relate to 
current applications, personal cases and confidential matters.  Please contact 
Democratic Services on 01962 848 264 at least three days in advance of the 
meeting (5pm Wednesday, 20 November 2024) for further details.  If there are no 
members of the public present at 6.30pm who wish to ask questions or make 
statements, then the meeting will commence. 
 
FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION 
 
This meeting will be recorded and broadcast live on the Council’s YouTube site.and 
may also be recorded and broadcast by the press and members of the public – 
please see the Access to Information Procedure Rules within the Council's 
Constitution for further information, which is available to view on the Council’s 
website. Please note that the video recording is subtitled, but you may have to 
enable your device to see them (advice on how to do this is on the meeting page). 
 
DISABLED ACCESS: 
 
Disabled access is normally available, but please phone Democratic Services on 
01962 848 264 or email democracy@winchester.gov.uk to ensure that the necessary 
arrangements are in place. 

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

ECONOMY AND HOUSING POLICY COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 17 September 2024 
Attendance: 
 

Councillors 
Batho (Chairperson) 

 
Achwal S 
Chamberlain 
Eve 
 

Morris 
Miller 
White 
 

 
Apologies for Absence:  
 
Councillor Scott 
 
Deputy Members: 
 
Councillor Aron (as deputy for Scott) 
 
Other members in attendance: 
 
Councillors Murphy, Thompson, Tod and Westwood 
 
 
Video recording of this meeting  
 

 
1.    APOLOGIES AND DEPUTY MEMBERS  

Apologies for the meeting were noted as above. 
 

2.    DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
Councillor White advised that agenda item 8: Winchester District Economy 
Review, page 50 contained a bullet point relating to the allocation of land for data 
centres. As a director of a company that builds data centres, she advised that if 
the discussion this evening centred around the bullet point then she would leave 
the room and take no further part in the discussion. 
 

3.    APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIRPERSON FOR THE 2024/25 MUNICIPAL 
YEAR.  
RESOLVED:                                
  

That Councillor Chamberlain be appointed Vice-Chairperson for the 
2024/25 municipal year. 

 
4.    CHAIRPERSON'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  

No announcements were made. 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 4

https://www.youtube.com/live/pvDg5Cl7LgA?si=Sm5eJSRIpGOHXq0Z


 
 

 
 

5.    MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 20 FEBRUARY 2024  
RESOLVED: 

That the minutes of the previous meeting held on the 20 February 
2024 be approved and adopted. 

 
6.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

Councillor Horrill and Councillor Cook addressed the committee regarding the 
agenda item: Housing, Repairs and Maintenance Contract Procurement and 
their contributions were captured within the agenda item below. 
 

7.    REVIEW OF ECONOMY AND HOUSING POLICY COMMITTEE 
RESOLUTIONS  
Councillor James Batho, Chairperson, introduced the report which set out a 
review of the Economy and Housing Policy Committee resolutions from the 
previous 12 months. The introduction included the following points: 
 

1. Officers had compiled a summary of meetings held over the past 12 
months, encompassing both housing and economy policy agenda items. 

2. The report documented the recommendations and resolutions made, the 
officers' responses, and the progress of these policies through the council. 

3. The Chairperson proposed to examine these updates and invited 
members to raise any questions, which could then be addressed by 
officers. 

4. For items requiring more detailed responses, it was suggested that they 
be brought forward to a subsequent meeting. 

 
Members were asked to note the responses to the Economy and Housing Policy 
Committee's previous resolutions. Several questions were asked arising from the 
contents of the report, and in summary, the following matters were raised: 
 

1. Questions were raised regarding whether the impact of resident demand 
for window retrofits had affected any planned activities, and if so, what 
was the impact. 

2. A point was raised about the potential to work with utility bill providers to 
distribute communications to residents, enhancing engagement in the 
retrofit housing programme, noting that this suggestion did not seem to be 
reflected in the action taken. 

3. Clarification was sought on the current council position regarding the 
carbon credit trading scheme, specifically whether it was proceeding or 
not. 

4. A suggestion was made to involve private homeowners and landlords in 
the retrofit project, particularly when neighbouring houses were involved, 
to improve efficiency—for example, offering asbestos clearance to private 
properties adjacent to council houses being retrofitted. 

5. Clarification was sought on when the next future review of the festivals, 
events, and programming policy would be, as many of the action taken 
responses referred to it. 

6. Assurance was sought that the council was adequately recovering costs 
for cleaning up and restoring locations after large events, particularly in 
areas like River Park, ensuring that the council was compensated for 
these expenses. 

Page 6



 
 

 
 

7. Clarification was sought on the process for informing ward councillors, 
especially in rural areas, about the local impacts of festivals and events, 
and what measures would be put in place to facilitate communication with 
councillors for events affecting their wards. 

8. Clarification was sought on whether dates had been set for bringing 
forward the Older Persons Accommodation Strategy, or if it was still under 
discussion. 

9. Clarification was sought regarding the absence of a response to item 
number seven of the Green Economic Development Strategy Action Plan.  

10. Clarification was sought on the status of the partnership group mentioned 
in the Cultural Strategy, specifically whether it had been formed and if the 
terms of reference had been agreed. 

 
These points were responded to by Simon Hendey, Strategic Director and Susan 
Robbins, Corporate Head of Economy & Community accordingly.  
 

RESOLVED: 
 

The committee noted the report. 
 
 

8.    WINCHESTER DISTRICT ECONOMY REVIEW (PRESENTATION)  
Councillor Lucille Thompson, Cabinet Member for Business and Culture 
introduced the agenda item which set out a presentation regarding the 
Winchester District Economy Review, (available here).  The introduction included 
the following points. 
 

1. The presentation contained a wealth of information and data that would 
inform the council's position on various policy initiatives moving forward. 

2. That there had been significant growth in the district's population between 
the 2011 and 2021 census data, noting an increase of almost 9.4%. 

3. Despite the population growth, the number of economically active 
individuals had decreased by a similar percentage. 

4. Councillor Thompson emphasized the district's ageing population, 
highlighting it as an imbalance that needed to be addressed. 

5. She referred to the council's quarterly economic dashboard, which 
provided up-to-date statistics and insights into the district's economy, 
noting its usefulness for keeping track of ongoing changes. 

 
Susan Robbins, Corporate Head of Economy & Community and Professor 
Suzanne Dixon, Economic Development Officer (Green Growth) provided a 
presentation which gave an overview of the Winchester District Economy Review 
which could be summarised as follows: 
 

1. The review aimed to provide high-level data and insights, and it discussed 
emerging policies, the changing economic landscape, and aligned council 
priorities with plans. 

2. While the presentation offered a flavour of key performance indicators, 
they noted that more detailed data was available from the Office of 
National Statistics. 

Page 7



 
 

 
 

3. The district had experienced a slight decrease in economic activity and an 
increase in economically active retired individuals, reflecting the ageing 
population. 

4. Although the number of people claiming out-of-work benefits was 
relatively low, over half were in the 25 to 49 age group, indicating a 
specific demographic concern. 

5. The district boasted a diverse mix of jobs across sectors such as the 
public sector, retail, technical, and professional roles, which helped guard 
against economic shocks in any single sector. 

6. There were over 8,000 enterprises in the district, approximately 82% were 
micro-enterprises (0 to 9 employees), highlighting the importance of small 
businesses to the local economy. 

7. The presence of high-quality educational institutions contributed to 
residents being highly qualified and consistently performing well in skills 
and qualification levels. 

8. Residents earned slightly more than those working in the district, with 
recent data showing a slight divergence that could affect affordability and 
cost of living. 

9. There was a decrease in people commuting by car and an increase in 
home working, possibly influenced by COVID-19 and changing work 
patterns; this had resulted in fewer people both entering and leaving the 
district for work. 

10. Winchester had a high number of jobs per working-age population, 
attracting more people into the district for employment. 

11. Vacancy rates on the High Street remained low, and business sentiment 
showed optimism despite external challenges like the cost of living and 
rising energy costs. 

12. Businesses faced challenges in retaining and recruiting staff, rising 
operational costs, and difficulties unique to rural areas such as transport 
and digital connectivity. 

13. They concluded that while the Winchester economy was performing well, 
certain areas required monitoring to ensure sustained and improved 
performance, particularly considering the ageing population and changes 
in commuting and work patterns. 

 
The committee was asked to note the contents of the presentation, provide any 
comments for the Cabinet member and officers to consider further and are asked 
to support:  
 

1. Using the proposed priorities to target and focus our approach to 
achieving the best economic outcomes for the district. 

2. The “business as usual” approach of delivering green economic growth 
from the council’s work.  

 
The committee proceeded to ask questions and debate the report. In summary, 
the following matters were raised: 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



 
 

 
 

1. A question was asked to clarify the meaning of the phrase "business as 
usual" in the context of developing the green economy. 

2. Clarification was sought on how the council was measuring the green 
impact and the projected carbon savings from businesses, including the 
impact of the green development plan. 

3. Questions were raised about encouraging the necessary skills for people 
to be trained in retrofitting, addressing the current insufficiency of 
resources to meet demand. 

4. Further information was requested on whether enough sites had been 
identified across the district for employment, considering the potential lack 
of employment sites in rural areas where new housing was planned. 

5. A question was asked on how the council planned to allocate land to 
businesses, given that significant employment sites seemed limited to 
areas like Bushfield. 

6. Clarification was sought on strategies to encourage visitors to spend 
longer in Winchester, thereby increasing tourism revenue and 
sustainability. 

7. A question was raised on how to create jobs where people are living, 
particularly in rural areas lacking designated employment sites in the local 
plan. 

8. The committee questioned whether the data on market towns and rural 
areas was sufficient and if these areas were receiving enough priority in 
the proposed measures. 

9. Further clarification was sought on whether the potential devolution of 
business rates to local authorities had been considered in future planning, 
especially regarding levelling the playing field between local independent 
businesses and large online retailers. 

10. Questions were asked about persuading owners of offices in areas like 
Whiteley, not owned by the council, to adopt policies such as installing 
solar panels. 

11. Clarification was requested on how to introduce hydrocarbon-free heating 
systems in offices currently using electrical or gas heating, and whether 
the council could insist or organise conversions to more sustainable 
systems. 

12. A question was asked about whether data on High Street performance, 
such as vacancy rates and business confidence, was being collected for 
retail areas in other parts of the district, such as Weeke, Harestock, and 
the retail park in Winnall. 

13. Concern was raised that relying on the presence of two universities for 
economic opportunities might be a weakness if future government higher 
education policies change, and whether this reliance had been 
considered. 

14. Questions were raised about ensuring career pathways in Winchester for 
those trained in green or creative skills to prevent graduates from leaving 
for opportunities elsewhere. 

15. The committee sought to understand if there was a risk that market towns 
and rural areas were dependent on a small number of large businesses, 
and if this should be considered a threat in the SWOT analysis. 

16. Further clarification was sought on how to support the majority of 
businesses in the district, which are micro-businesses, given their 
diversity and varied needs. 

Page 9



 
 

 
 

17. A question was asked about other aspects, beyond incubator hubs and 
start-up spaces, which should be considered to support graduate 
retention in the Winchester district, possibly involving the wider council 
plan. 

 
These points were responded to by Susan Robbins, Corporate Head of 
Economy & Community, Suzanne Dixon, Economic Development Officer (Green 
Growth), Councillor Lucille Thompson, Cabinet Member for Business and 
Culture and Councillor Martin Tod, Leader and Cabinet member for Asset 
Management accordingly.  
 
RESOLVED: 

1. That the committee noted the contents of the Winchester District 
Economy Review presentation. 

2. That the committee provided comments on the presentation as requested. 
3. The committee agreed to ask the Cabinet Member to consider the 

following: 
a) To continue supporting work on skills development, particularly in 

retrofitting and digital support. 
b) To ensure that rural areas remain a focus, providing more detail 

and understanding of how businesses in these areas are operating 
and identifying additional areas of support they may need. 

c) To continue and expand work in the solar energy sector, working 
with businesses on commercial implementation, conversion from 
gas, and assessments related to these initiatives. 

d) To prioritise efforts that align with the 'Greener Faster' initiative, 
recognising its importance in improving the district's performance. 

e) To support using the proposed priorities to target and focus the 
council's approach to achieving the best economic outcomes for 
the district. 

f) To continue with the business-as-usual approach in delivering 
green economic growth through the council's work. 

 
 

9.    HOUSING, REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE CONTRACT PROCUREMENT 
(PRESENTATION)  
Councillor Chris Westwood, Cabinet Member for Housing introduced the agenda 
item on the Housing, Repairs and Maintenance Contract Procurement. He 
highlighted that the repairs and maintenance contract with Cardo had been in 
place for around 13 years, during which much had changed. He emphasised the 
necessity of reviewing the council's requirements and identifying the best partner 
to deliver these services moving forward. Acknowledging that 80% of tenants 
were satisfied with the repairs and maintenance service and 78% were happy 
with its timeliness, he expressed that there was still room for improvement. 
 
He stated his desire for Winchester City Council Housing to be easier to do 
business with, noting that this could mean different things to different people and 
outlined several key outcomes desired from the new contract: 
 

1. Establishing a partnership rather than a supplier relationship, with the 
chosen partner representing the council's values in tenants' homes. 

Page 10



 
 

 
 

2. Improving customer service and experience, including a strong digital 
offering and continuous customer feedback at all interactions. 

3. Enhancing the quality of service to ensure repairs were done right the first 
time, every time. 

4. Ensuring transparency and visibility for both tenants and internal 
management to effectively oversee operational processes and the 
contract. 

5. Reducing repair costs to deliver value for money to the council and 
tenants. 

6. Fostering continuous innovation to improve services and drive further 
value. 

7. Expanding services beyond repairs and maintenance to potentially 
include planned upgrades, retrofit activities, decarbonisation of housing 
stock, voids management, and other future services. 

 
He emphasised that this contract was one of the most important and valuable for 
the council and sought feedback on the work completed to date to inform the 
procurement process over the next 18 to 24 months. 
 
Simon Hendey, Strategic Director, Yvonne Anderson, Service Lead - Housing 
Landlord Services and Jamie Butt, Procurement Officer further introduced the 
item and provided a presentation and explained the procurement process 
planned for the next two years leading up to the selection of a new contractor. 
They detailed the stakeholder engagement activities undertaken: 
 

1. Conducted a resident survey sent to all households in the council's stock, 
receiving 823 responses, which was considered a positive level of 
engagement. 

2. Hosted resident workshops, although attendance was lower than 
anticipated, with efforts made to encourage participation. 

3. Held discussions with Cardo and CCS to understand what worked well 
and areas needing improvement. 

4. Engaged with housing staff to gather their insights, given their close 
involvement with the service. 

5. Consulted with members to obtain valuable feedback. 
6. Reached out to contractors to gauge their interest in the contract, 

following an advertised invitation and an online event to attract further 
interest. 

 
They further described the proposed scope of the contract, which would include: 
 

1. Repairs and maintenance services. 
2. Voids management to prepare empty homes for new tenants promptly. 
3. Compliance services, particularly focusing on the "big six" regulatory 

requirements. 
4. Cyclical and planned programmes. 
5. Potential inclusion of the retrofit programme. 
6. Consideration of whether the repairs hub would continue to be operated 

by the council or managed by the provider. 
7. Co-location of the provider's team within the city offices to maintain close 

collaboration. 

Page 11



 
 

 
 

 
They emphasised the shift from a traditional "master and servant" contract model 
to a strategic partnership approach, favouring the TAC - 1 contract for its 
collaborative nature, as supported by feedback from contractors. They discussed 
various pricing mechanisms, highlighting the preference for a "price per repair" 
model over others like "price per property" or "schedule of rates" due to fairness 
and risk management. 
 
Finally, an overview of the procurement timeline, noting key milestones was 
provided which included the completion of the research phase and preparation of 
tender documents, the publication of the contract notice and bid evaluations, with 
the intention to award the new contract in December 2025, with the contract 
expected to commence in July 2026. They concluded by emphasising the 
importance of this contract and the council's commitment to improving services 
for tenants through this procurement process. 
 
Councillor Horrill addressed the committee regarding the procurement of the 
Housing, Repairs and Maintenance Contract and raised several points for the 
committee to consider, including the following. She questioned the proposal of a 
ten-year contract without a break clause and suggested incorporating a full 
review for flexibility. She expressed concern about relying on a single contractor 
for such a significant investment and asked whether multiple contractors had 
been considered. Additionally, she emphasised the importance of understanding 
the council's repair requirements, suggested including commitments to 
apprenticeships and local job opportunities in the contract, and inquired about 
the expected social value outcomes. 
 
Councillor Cook addressed the committee regarding the procurement of the 
Housing, Repairs and Maintenance Contract and raised several points for the 
committee to consider, including the following. She raised concerns about 
previous questions related to housing that remained unanswered, referring to an 
earlier email. She was concerned if the council had been paying invoices without 
verifying completed work, as revealed in a previous meeting. She also 
highlighted low resident attendance at workshops which could be due to 
inadequate notice, and expressed concerns about the management of the repair 
hub and lack of scrutiny on rates for voids.  
 
The committee was asked to note and comment on the contents of the 
presentation and the views and comments of the committee were sought to 
inform the Cabinet Member for Housing prior to the Cabinet meeting on the 20th 
of November 2024. 
 
The committee proceeded to ask questions and debate the report. In summary, 
the following matters were raised: 
 

1. A question was asked about the social value assessment criteria part of 
quality evaluation, was this a minimum and if there was potential to 
increase this percentage as part of the evaluation. Clarification was also 
sought on how delays in legislation might have affected this level and how 
transparency would be ensured regarding the social value delivered. 

Page 12



 
 

 
 

2. Clarification was sought on the pricing mechanisms currently in use, their 
effectiveness in terms of value for money and resident outcomes, and 
how the proposed mechanisms would differ. 

3. A question was raised regarding the recommendation to enter into a Term 
Alliance  Contract (TAC-1), questioning whether this should be explicitly 
included in the recommendations to Cabinet. 

4. Concern was expressed about the end of the current contract, specifically 
what would happen if the current contractor lost staff or interest before the 
new contract commenced, and how any potential additional costs would 
be managed. 

5. Further clarification was requested on contingency plans if the new 
contract was not in place before the current one ended, including the 
possibility of extending the existing contract. 

6. An inquiry was made about the perceived advantages to the council of 
having a ten-year contract. 

7. Questions were asked about the open book reviews proposed at years 
three, five, and seven of the contract, including what aspects would be 
reviewed and what would constitute severe failings. 

8. Clarification was sought on when KPIs would be developed and included 
in the contract, and what they might encompass. 

9. Questions were raised about the "price per void" approach, specifically 
why there was no requirement to scrutinise rates and how costs would be 
controlled under this model. 

10. An inquiry was made about whether penalties would be included in the 
contract for failures to meet specifications or timelines, and how the 
council would enforce these. 

11. Clarification was sought on how annual works would be managed within a 
ten-year lead contractor arrangement, and how flexibility would be 
maintained to go to the market if necessary. 

12. A question was raised about whether retrofit works under the contract 
would cover measures to prevent flooding in properties at risk. 

13. Concern was expressed about inflation risk over the ten-year period, 
particularly how indexation would affect the "price per void" and "price per 
repair" models, and how this risk would be managed. 

14. An inquiry was made about residents' ability to raise faults directly with the 
contractor, how the council's systems would interact with the contractor's 
systems, and how oversight and record-keeping would be maintained to 
ensure transparency and accountability. 

15. Questions were asked about whether there was sufficient time to ensure 
system integration between the council and the contractor before the 
contract commenced. 

16. Concern was raised about complaints being made directly to the 
contractor and the potential risk of lack of oversight or discrepancies in 
records between the resident and contractor. 

17. A question was asked about the 823 resident responses received, 
specifically whether it was possible to quantify the percentage of 
responses from the city area versus the rural areas. 

 
 
 

Page 13



 
 

 
 

These points were responded to by Councillor Chris Westwood, Cabinet 
Member for Housing, Simon Hendey, Strategic Director, Yvonne Anderson, 
Service Lead - Housing Landlord Services and Jamie Butt, Procurement Officer 
accordingly. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
1. That the committee noted the contents of the presentation on the 

Housing, Repairs and Maintenance Contract Procurement. 
2. The committee agreed to ask the Cabinet Member to consider the 

following: 
a) To ensure that clear and detailed KPIs were developed and 

included in the report to Cabinet, as they were essential for 
guaranteeing the performance of the contract. 

b) To focus on defining and maximising the social value 
aspects within the contract, acknowledging that this 
significant contract presented an opportunity to improve the 
social aspects of the local communities. 

c) To consider the comments provided by the committee. 
 
 

10.    COUNCIL PLAN 2025-30 (PRESENTATION)  
 
Councillor Martin Tod, Leader and Cabinet Member for Asset Management; 
introduced the agenda item which set out proposals for the Council Plan 2025-
30, an overarching high-level document covering what the council wanted to 
achieve and informing other strategies and plans, including the Local Plan and 
individual service plans. 
 
Councillor Tod explained that the two policy committees and Scrutiny Committee 
were being asked to look at their relevant responsibilities of the current plan, he 
specifically, wanted to reassure the Cabinet, that  each committee had 
considered: 

1. Their thoughts on the future challenges faced. 
2. How the current plan had performed. 
3. Where the committee thought the council needed to be by 2030. 

 
He stated that this committee was asked to focus on: 

1. Homes for All. 
2. Vibrant Local Economy. 
3. Pride in Place. 

 
Simon Howson, Senior Policy and Programme Manager provided the committee 
with a presentation and introduced the process for developing the next council 
plan, he highlighted the following key points: 
 

1. The presentation included a quick look back and a look forward, outlining 
challenges, knowns, and unknowns, and sought councillors' input on 
priorities, focus areas, and evaluation of what had worked or had not. 

2. The current council plan was adopted in January 2020 and runs until 31 
March 2025; from 1 April 2025, a new plan would commence. 

Page 14



 
 

 
 

3. This was an opportunity to review outcomes and priorities for the council 
and the district, with priorities being evidence-based, using data from the 
recently completed resident survey. 

4. Engagement was ongoing with councillors, parish councillors, businesses 
and the voluntary sector to gather input for the new plan. 

5. The engagement phase aimed to listen to residents and businesses in the 
district in order to input into the next council plan. 

6. The draft council plan would be considered by the Cabinet in December 
2024, before going to full Council for adoption in January 2025. 

7. He reminded the committee of the current council plan and vision, and the 
current priorities: tackling the climate emergency, homes for all, living 
well, vibrant local economy, your services your voice. 

8. The focus for this evening was on homes for all, vibrant local economy, 
and pride in place. 

9. He outlined the roles of various committees in the plan review and 
presented key questions for the committee to consider, including how 
challenges had changed since 2020, expected future challenges by 2030, 
and what success would look like. 

 
The committee was asked to review and comment on the direction of the Council 
Plan, including the vision, themes and priorities.  
 
The committee proceeded to ask questions and debate the report. In summary, 
the following matters were raised: 
 

1. A question was asked about what evidence would be used to formulate 
the new council plan, referencing the corporate peer review feedback that 
highlighted perceptions of the council being too focused on the city at the 
expense of the wider district.  

2. Further information was requested on the potential to better utilise the 
voluntary and community sectors. 

3. A question was raised regarding how housing challenges had changed 
since 2020, noting that private landlords were leaving the market in large 
numbers, leading to potential increases in evictions and how the council 
plans to cope with this issue in the current or next plan. 

4. A question was asked about the support to the growing elderly population, 
as indicated by the 2021 census data, and whether considerations had 
been made for disabled residents, such as incorporating suitable features 
in new housing developments or care homes. 

5. Further clarification was sought on how the upcoming older persons 
strategy could be incorporated into the council plan. 

6. An inquiry was made about addressing housing infrastructure issues, 
specifically how the council could alleviate flooding caused by inadequate 
pipes and water networks due to population growth. 

7. An observation was made about the increasing need for a diversity of 
housing to meet emergent needs, such as emergency or short-term 
housing due to changes in circumstances like poor health, and whether 
this represents a change since 2020. 

 
 

Page 15



 
 

 
 

8. A question was asked about how the council can address the lack of 
affordable housing, which was crucial for encouraging young people to 
stay in the district, noting that this issue had become even more 
significant since the previous council plan. 

9. An inquiry was made about whether policies could be implemented to 
encourage downsizing among the ageing population, thereby freeing up 
larger properties for families and helping address housing needs within 
the district. 

10. A question was raised about how the council was addressing the need for 
housing to be more resilient to extreme weather events caused by the 
climate emergency, such as wind, rain, flooding, and extreme heat, 
particularly considering that well-insulated homes may lack air 
conditioning during extreme heat. 

11. An inquiry was made about what more the council could do to support 
small businesses, particularly those with 0–9 employees, in terms of 
digital connectivity, considering future reliance on satellite and 5G 
connectivity, especially in rural areas where fibre connectivity was 
unlikely. 

12. A question was raised about how the council could encourage farmers to 
adapt to changing farming practices due to a warmer climate, such as 
growing grapes, as part of promoting a vibrant economy. 

13. An inquiry was made about how emerging technologies like artificial 
intelligence would affect various activities over the next five years—
including the economy, transport, and banking—and how the council 
should focus on these areas. 

14. A question was asked about what more the council could do to encourage 
and support small businesses in the rural economy, both to help existing 
businesses succeed and to support new businesses and ideas coming 
forward, recognising their significant contribution to employment and the 
economy. 

15. An inquiry was made about how the council can address the trend of 
fewer young people starting businesses due to numerous rules and 
regulations, and how to encourage younger people to start businesses. 

16. A concern was raised about the ageing workforce in trades such as 
plastering, carpentry, and bricklaying, with not enough young people 
entering these industries. 

17. A concern was expressed about the lack of public transport in rural areas, 
limiting employment opportunities for residents without cars—particularly 
for retail jobs with shifts. 

18. A question was raised about challenges experienced by Hampshire 
County Council, leading to reduced road repairs and potential closure or 
increased charges for Household Waste Recovery Centres, which would 
affect Winchester, particularly regarding pride in place, and how much of 
the slack the council would be expected to pick up. 

19. A question was asked about how the council would ensure it balances its 
budget and manages dwindling finances over the next five years, given 
potential insufficient funding to maintain current service levels. 

20. An inquiry was made about how the council can empower communities—
particularly village halls and community centres wishing to become 
community hubs. 

 

Page 16



 
 

 
 

These points were responded to by Councillor Martin Tod, Leader and Cabinet 
Member for Asset Management and Simon Howson, Senior Policy and 
Programme Manager accordingly. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the Committee requested that the cabinet member consider 
the committee's comments raised during the discussion of the item. 

 
11.    TO NOTE THE WORK PROGRAMME FOR SEPTEMBER 2024  

RESOLVED: 
 

The current work programme was noted. 
 
 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm and concluded at 10.10 pm 
 
 
 

Chairperson 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



  
 

CAB3478 
CABINET 

 
 

REPORT TITLE: HRA BUSINESS PLAN AND BUDGET OPTIONS 
 
20 NOVEMBER 2024 

REPORT OF CABINET MEMBER: CLLR CHRIS WESTWOOD – CABINET MEMBER 
FOR HOUSING   

Contact Officer:  LIZ KEYS    Tel No: (01962) 848226 
EmailLkeys@winchester.gov.uk  

WARD(S):  ALL 
 

 

 
PURPOSE 

Despite continuing budget challenges faced by the council’s housing service, this 
report offers budget options to maintain the council’s policy objectives to go greener 
faster, address the cost-of-living crisis and maintain the commitment to deliver 1000 
new homes.  

Continuing inflationary building supply and construction pressures, and stubbornly 
high Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) interest rates mean that new homes viability 
remains challenging.  To address this significant rise in building costs and maintain 
the commitment to delivering 1000 new homes, the previous business plan was 
rebalanced with a new homes acquisition strategy to prioritise purchase of new 
homes from developers, where costs are currently significantly lower, and to 
continue to develop schemes where the business case is proven to be viable and 
demand for the new homes exists. 

Further budgetary pressures arising, particularly around repairs & maintenance, 
have put further pressure on the HRA budget.  

The budget options contained in this report support the council’s commitment to 
increase investment in customers’ homes to go greener faster and to deliver the 
1000 new homes programme by 2032/33. 

To achieve these policy objectives and set a viable and sustainable HRA business 
plan, several budget options have been identified for consideration, development 
and consultation with customers. Subject to the development and consultation those 
options will be decided by Cabinet when the Housing Revenue Account budget is 
considered in February 2025. 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



  CAB3478 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. Note the draft HRA Business 30-year Plan for 2024-25 to 2053-54 metrics 

shown in Appendix 3 and current 5 year projection at Appendix 1 

2. To note the business plan pressures identified in the 2024/25 business 

planning exercise as outlined in paragraphs 11.26 and 11.36, totalling 

£1.986m 

3. To approve the budget options outlined within this report and detailed at 

Appendix 2 as a basis for consultation to inform the February budget setting. 

4. To approve the reallocation of £0.25m from the one off investment budget set 

in the previous business plan to meet actions arising from our self 

assessment of our consumer standards compliance and service 

improvements identified.   

5. Note the continuing strategy for New homes based upon a mixture of actively 

acquiring s106 affordable housing directly from developers alongside future 

development with grant funding and using Right to Buy resources.  

6. Note the current financial viability assessment for new build from para 11.15 

to 11.25 

7. Note that a revenue savings target of £2m has been set to assist with bridging 

the forecast gap in financing future capital expenditure.  

8. Note the proposed timescale for asset disposals, and that Barnes House 
disposal has been reconsidered for proposed use as Temporary 
Accommodation 
  

9. Note that based on the September 2024 CPI figure of 1.7% that the average 

formula rent increase for 2025-26 for all affordable and social housing will be 

2.7%   

10. Note that the budget in October announced a consultation for future rent 
settlement between now and December, which indicates preference for CPI+1 
for 5 years into the future, and approve the application of this principle in the 
business plan model to mitigate the cost of new build developments and 
reduce long term debt burden to the HRA once the outcome of the 
consultation is known.  
 

11. To approve continuing full cost recovery in tenant service charges in 2025/26 

and note that charges will generally reduce following a softening of energy 

prices, 

12. Note that there is an ongoing workstream on the re-procurement of the repairs 

and maintenance contract. The Business plan provides for this to happen over 

the following two years at a provisional one-off cost of £0.4m in 2024/25, and 

estimated £0.3m in 2025/26. 

Page 20



  CAB3478 
 

 

13. Note that, following implementation of options, the draft HRA Business 30-

year Plan is viable and sustainable and has the capacity to support the 

council’s ambitious delivery of 1,000 new affordable homes by the end of 

2031/32 

 

Page 21



  CAB3478 
 

 

 

IMPLICATIONS: 
 
1. COUNCIL PLAN OUTCOME  

1.1. Providing good quality housing and new affordable homes is a strategic 
priority for the council. Effective management of the resources available to 
the council enable it to take advantage of new opportunities and ensuring 
tenant satisfaction in relation to their home and community.  

1.2. Tackling the Climate Emergency and Creating a Greener District 

Carbon reduction measures will be accelerated across the existing housing 
stock and included within the design and construction of new properties and 
included within the feasibility assessment when considering the purchase of 
properties. This includes the council’s retrofit programme for existing 
properties, for which £40.2m is allocated between 2024/25 and 2030/31 
within this year’s plan. 

1.3. Homes for all 

Assist with the increase of affordable housing property stock across the 
Winchester district and meet the council’s objective to provide a range of 
tenures to meet demand. 

1.4. Vibrant Local Economy 

Deliver affordable accommodation which allows people to live and work in 
the district and contribute to the local economy.  

1.5. Living Well 

The wellbeing of residents is considered within the design of new properties 
and new homes are designed to be both energy efficient and to meet 
tenants’ needs. Any substitute properties are assessed according to these 
criteria.  

1.6. Your Services, Your Voice 

Housing tenants are directly involved in decisions regarding service 
provision, both through the work of Tenants and Council Together (TACT), 
the council’s tenant involvement group and through regular tenant and 
leaseholder digital surveys, capturing wider tenant views. The service 
continues to review options to provide an improved customer experience, 
increase opportunities for engagement, and to ensure satisfaction with 
services provided by the council.  

2. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

2.1. Financial implications are detailed within section 11 of the report and in the 
accompanying appendices 

Page 22



  CAB3478 
 

 

 

3. LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS  

3.1. Under Part VI of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 any local 
authority that owns housing stock is obliged to maintain a Housing Revenue 
Account. The HRA is a record of revenue expenditure and income in relation 
to an authority’s own housing stock. The items to be credited and debited to 
the HRA are prescribed by statute. It is a ring-fenced account within the 
authority’s General Fund, which means that local authorities have no general 
discretion to transfer sums into or out of the HRA.  

3.2. The council is required to prepare proposals each year relating to the income 
of the authority from rents and other charges, expenditure on repairs, 
maintenance, supervision and management of HRA property and other 
prescribed matters. The proposals should be made on the best assumptions 
and estimates available and designed to secure that the housing revenue 
account for the coming year does not show a debit balance and is 
sustainable in the long term. The report sets out information relevant to these 
considerations.  

3.3. Section 76 Local Government and Housing Act 1989 places a duty on local 
housing authorities: (a) to produce, and make available for public inspection, 
an annual budget for their HRA which avoids a deficit; (b) to review and if 
necessary, revise that budget from time to time and (c) to take all reasonably 
practicable steps to avoid an end-of-year deficit.  

4. WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS  

4.1. There are potential staffing implications in the proposed budget options 
including the deletion of vacant posts in the New Homes delivery team, and 
potential invest to save proposals. 

5. PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS  

5.1. To meet one of the key principles of the council plan, the HRA is required to 
provide sufficient financial resources to both maintain existing stock to 
decent homes standard and to enable new affordable housing to be obtained 
to help meet local demands.   

6. CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION  

6.1. A meeting of the new TACT board took place on the 21st October to review 
the budget gap and savings proposals. Subject to the decision of cabinet on 
If the savings proposals within this report are accepted, they will be subject 
to consultation with all engaged tenants through a variety of means. The 
results of that consultation will be reported to Cabinet to take into 
consideration when agreeing the HRA budget at their meeting in February. 

 

 

Page 23



  CAB3478 
 

 

 

7. ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

7.1. This year’s proposed 30 year business plan ensures sufficient provision of 
resources to fund the fabric-first retrofit programme of works, with funding of 
£44m over the next 7 years. During 2023/24, a total of 358 houses were 
completed, with a further 48 completed during the first quarter of 2024/25; 
and delivery of the overall planned investment could lead to a reduction of 
1666.22tCO2 from customers’ homes by 2030. 

7.2. The Business Plan also funds the provision of five dedicated retrofit officers 
responsible for the delivery of the retrofit programme.  

7.3. The Housing Service considers environmental factors when preparing and 
developing major projects e.g., working closely with Planning and Landscape 
Officers when considering new build developments to meet the required 
codes for sustainable housing. 

8 PUBLIC SECTOR EQUALITY DUTY  

8.1 This document is part of the budget consultation process, and the public 
 sector equality duty is considered alongside any relevant budget options. The 
 housing service holds data in respect of its tenants’ protected characteristics. 
 The impact of the proposals will be addressed in relation to tenants who 
 have protected characteristics following consultation and consideration for 
 reporting to cabinet at its February meeting.    . 

 
9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

9.1 All proposals set out in this report and the Capital Programme will be subject 
to individual data protection impact assessments.   

 
10 RISK MANAGEMENT  

Risk Mitigation Opportunities 
Property 
 
That Council owned 
dwellings fail to meet 
Decent Home standards for 
the condition of social 
houses set out by the 
government. 

 
An effective programme of 
future works and sound 
financial planning ensures 
that the Decent Homes 
standards are met and then 
maintained. 
 

 
Self-Financing provides 
certainty around future 
resource allocations and 
facilitates better supply 
chain management 

Community Support 
 
Lack of consultation will 
affect tenant satisfaction 
and cause objections to 
planning applications for 
new build developments. 

 
Regular communication and 
consultation is maintained 
with tenants and 
leaseholders on a variety of 
housing issues. 
 

 
Positive consultation brings 
forward alternative options 
that may otherwise not have 
been considered. 

Page 24



  CAB3478 
 

 

 

Risk Mitigation Opportunities 
The Council consults with 
local residents and 
stakeholders on proposed 
new build schemes. 
 

Timescales 
 
Delays to new build 
contracts may result in 
increased costs and lost 
revenue. 
 
 
. 

 
New build contracts contain 
clauses to allow the Council 
to recover damages if the 
project is delayed due to 
contractor actions. 

 

Project capacity 
 
The HRA can borrow funds 
in addition to utilising 
external receipts and 
reserves, but it must be able 
to service the loan interest 
arising. 
 

 
Regular monitoring of 
budgets and business plans, 
together with the use of 
financial assessment tools 
enables the Council to 
manage resources 
effectively. 

 
The Council monitor’s 
government announcements 
on the use of RTB receipts 
and potential capital grant 
funding. 
 

Deliverables 
 
Risk that the council cannot 
deliver the programme of 
new build and meet the 
objective of 1000 homes in 
10 years because of the 
lack of sites, the cost of 
development or the cost of 
financing this development. 
 

 
The new homes is 
monitored on a regular basis 
and if appropriate could be 
delayed or re-profiled in light 
of the availability of these 
resources 

 
Review the deliverable 
shape of the programme 
and its profiled delivery 
considering available 
resources and risk appetite 

 
Staffing resources (not 
always in Housing) reduce 
the ability to push forward 
new schemes at the 
required pace. 

 
Staffing resources have 
been reviewed to support 
the delivery of the new build 
programme. 

 
Given the challenging 
nature of the delivery targets 
it may be necessary to 
review the resourcing 
requirements needed to 
successfully deliver this 
programme 

Financial / VFM 
 
Risks, mitigation, and 
opportunities are managed 
through regular project 
monitoring meetings. 
 
 

 
New build Schemes are 
financially evaluated and 
must pass financial hurdles 
and demonstrate VFM. Total 
Scheme Costs contain 
provision for contingency on 
build costs and on fees for 

 
In addition, the HRA holds 
annual minimum levels of 
reserves based upon 5% of 
operating turnover and 10% 
new build costs. 

Page 25



  CAB3478 
 

 

 

Risk Mitigation Opportunities 
 
 
 
 
 
Insufficient new build sites 
are identified to assign RTB 
1-4-1 receipts financing to 
and RTB receipts are 
required to be repaid to 
Central Government with up 
to an estimated 
compounded 55% interest 
penalty based on current 
rates. 

new build developments that 
take account of potential 
residual development and 
sales risk. 
 
RTB 1-4-1 are closely 
monitored so in-year targets 
for new builds are known. 
 

Financial Assessment 
 
Risk that the cost of 
developing new homes 
projects will fail to meet the 
financial hurdles required to 
be financially viable to 
develop/acquire within the 
HRA 

 
The measures identified 
within this paper will help to 
mitigate against the 
increased costs of new 
homes by increasing the 
income available to fund 
increased borrowing costs 
and reducing the overall 
cost of delivery. 
 

 

Interest rate volatility 
 
Risk of volatile economic 
and fiscal environment for 
borrowing contributing to 
making external borrowing 
decisions difficult to take.  

 
The HRA has cash reserves 
that allow it in the short term 
to effectively borrow from 
internal resources giving a 
period for interest rates to 
stabilise and reset and the 
fiscal environment to be 
more benign. 
 

 
The use of internal 
borrowing can help to 
reduce the short-term cost 
of borrowing as well as 
delay the need to seek 
external finance and 
delivers better overall 
returns to the HRA 

Future Social Rent Policy 
 
Uncertainty about long term 
rental income streams 
because of the end of the 
current agreement on rent 
setting in April 2025. 

 
Rental income accounts for 
93% of all the HRA annual 
income, and future potential 
uncertainty, government 
intervention or constraint 
has a significant impact on 
the future capacity of the 
HRA and deliverability of the 
plan 

 
Sectorial lobbying of 
Government to seek future 
certainty will help to support 
better decision making. 
Engagement in government 
consultation process 
between now and Dec 2024 

Legal 
The provision of social 
housing is a statutory 
requirement. Changing 
Government priorities place 
a greater emphasis on 

 
Government statutory 
requirements and policy 
changes are being 
monitored to identify any 

 
To create new housing 
developments within new 
guidelines and drawing on 
innovative thinking.  

Page 26



  CAB3478 
 

 

 

Risk Mitigation Opportunities 
social housing which must 
be monitored and 
considered within planning 
of future new build projects. 
 

new risks or opportunities 
that they may bring. 

Reputation 
Failure to complete major 
housing projects due to lack 
of resources would have a 
direct impact on both 
customer satisfaction and 
the Council’s reputation. 
 

 
Business planning tools with 
regular updates are utilised 
to make sure resources are 
available to complete 
projects. 

 

Other  
– Environmental regulation 
such as that by Natural 
England on mitigating 
Phosphates 

 
This delays the ability to 
bring forth schemes with 
planning permission and 
delays increase the cost and 
viability of schemes. 
 

 

 
11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

Executive Summary: 

11.1 The HRA Business planning process is completed annually and all 
assumptions are revisited and undertaken a fresh every year. To set a viable 
and sustainable business plan for the next 30 years has been extremely 
challenging this year.  

11.2 The key challenges in the HRA specifically in 2024/25 arises from the 
increased cost of repairs and maintenance, following the determination that 
cumulative RPI was not being applied correctly and subsequent assessment 
on costs, combined with increasing demand for repairs, driving an increase in 
R&M costs of £1.1m. In addition to this: 

• Service pressures of £0.3m,. The key service pressures include the 
cost of regulation £0.045m, increased cost of services charged by the 
General Fund £0.15m, anticipated additional cost of insurance, and 
other minor service pressures. 

• An additional £0.36m estimate of the required transfer from revenue to 
the Major Repairs Reserve, based on depreciation. While the HRA 
does not lose this sum, it restricts its use to capital purposes and 
therefore reduces flexibility. 

• The significant increases in cost of construction seen since 2020 are 
now baked in and continue to increase broadly in line with inflation in 
2024/25. 

Page 27



  CAB3478 
 

 

 

• Interest on borrowing remains high and is not expected to decrease 
significantly in the near term. 

• Potential pressures of £0.25m arising from to meet actions arising from 
our self assessment of our consumer standards compliance and 
service improvements identified. 

• The October budget confirmed an increase in National Insurance 
employers contributions, which would generate additional pressure on 
staffing costs from April 2025. The budget indicates that the public 
sector would be reimbursed, however it is not yet clear how this will be 
calculated or allocated. The potential impact cannot yet be quantified 
therefore, and has not yet been factored into the business plan.  

If no action were to be taken to address these pressures, there would be 
insufficient resources within the business plan. Accommodating these 
pressures would require an overall reduction in the CFR of £42m to reduce 
borrowing costs over the next 5 years to maintain minimum working balances 
over the life of the business plan.   

The business plan has therefore been built up to identify the level of savings 
needed to meet the pressures identified and deliver commitments of 1000 
homes and retrofit programmes by 2031/32, and build sufficient capacity to 
repay debt after 2031/32.  

The level of saving required to maintain current spending plans and working 
balance in the short term, and increase capacity in the long term, is £2m. 

Further rent increases after 2027/28, if allowed, will support future 
housebuilding beyond 2031/32, additional investment in the housing stock or 
opportunity to redeem debt.   

Economic Outlook and cost pressures: 

11.3 The Budget for 2024-25 was set against a background of high interest rates 
designed to tackle inflationary pressures. CPI inflation has since fallen and 
reached 1.7% at September 2024, below the Bank of England’s target of 2%. 
However, this does not mean that costs have fallen, it means that the pace of 
increase has slowed down, and key cost drivers to the HRA such as energy 
and building materials continue to remain significantly high.  

11.4 Bank of England base rate rises continued into the early part of 2024/25 and 
stabilised through the spring, prior to a small reduction in base rate in August 
and maintained at 5% in September. Although further base rate reductions 
are likely, it is unlikely that interest rates will be as low as they were prior to 
2021. Measures were taken in the 2023/24 business plan to increase capacity 
for borrowing in the business plan, but with no allowance to reduce debt 
overall.  

 

Page 28



  CAB3478 
 

 

 

Cost of construction 

11.5 The investment required for new homes continued to increase in 2024/25. 
Construction cost inflation during 2024 to date have been in line with inflation, 
and costs identified through the development of business cases for new build 
have varied from £4,800 to £5,100 per square metre (including 15% 
allowance for oncosts); making the cost of construction (excluding land) for an 
average 90sqm 3-bedroom property now in excess of £430,000. At the same 
time the cost of borrowing that the council can access remains high, whilst 
new affordable rents have increased only in line with inflation plus 1% in 
recent years. 

Rent Increases 

11.6 The council must set its rents in line with the Rent Standard and central 
Government’s Regulator of Social Housing’s rent setting guidelines. The 
current basis of rent setting is CPI+1% for 2025/26. The October budget 
confirmed the government’s intention to consult on future social rent policy 
between now and December 2024. The indication within the consultation 
would be for CPI + 1% for 5 years. The business plan currently assumes that 
the current level of CPI+1% will continue into 2025/26, 2026/27 and 2027/28. 
Based on September CPI of 1.7%, the rent increase in 2025/26 would be 
2.7%.  

Repairs and maintenance 

11.7 Annually the council looks at the capital costs of maintaining the existing 
housing stock at decent homes standard and its investment here is based 
upon an asset management plan. This identifies the investment requirement 
profiled over the thirty-year plan based upon the lifecycle replacement costs of 
key components. To bring the housing stock up to the required energy 
efficiency standard of EPC C identified by 2030-31, the business plan allows 
for £40.2m on capital works. The Council continues to see pressure on 
reactive and cyclical maintenance in the revenue budget and this is expanded 
on at para 14.2. 

Interest on borrowing 

11.8 Interest rates are a key cost driver in the HRA business plan and as at 31 
March 2024 the HRA had a Capital Financing requirement of  £215m, of 
which £159m is external debt (fixed at PWLB interest rates averaging 3.2%) 
and the balance of £55.8m is internally borrowed (offset against reserve 
balances and working capital). PWLB rates are not directly linked to the Bank 
of England base rate but are set at a margin over government gilt yields, 
which analysts believe are likely to fall slightly in the medium term but remain 
higher than the period of historically low rates following the 2008 financial 
crisis. The current cost of financing this external debt is £5.5m per annum.  

11.9 This debt largely came about through self-financing and was originally taken 
out in 2012. A proportion of this existing external debt (£100m) will need to be 

Page 29



  CAB3478 
 

 

 

refinanced over the next 15 years, with a need to refinance £30m of it within 
the next five years. The HRA, unlike the General Fund, has no requirement to 
set aside funding for debt repayment, albeit that the depreciation charge is set 
aside to finance capital expenditure. In previous versions of the business plan, 
all underlying debt is refinanced. However, where there is capacity, the model 
assumes repayments to reduce debt burden in the long term, and in the 
current iteration, £90m debt would be repaid by the end of the period. 

11.10 In addition, the proposed plan will see HRA funding the building or acquisition 
of additional affordable homes, funded through a mixture of Right to Buy 
(RTB) 1-4-1 capital receipts; shared ownership sales; other discretionary 
asset disposals; grants and affordable housing s106 contributions; and 
borrowing. This will require additional prudential borrowing of £178m to 
finance this delivery. At present the cost of long-term government borrowing 
remains elevated and stands at circa 5% for 50 year borrowing at the time of 
writing. In the decade before 2006/07 the PWLB long term interest rate 
peaked at 9.42% but averaged 5%, and therefore the model continues to 
assume that the cost of borrowing in the plan will be 5% for the duration of the 
planning period.  

11.11 The October budget confirmed that the preferential rate for HRA borrowing, 
which was due to expire on 30 June 2025, will be extended to the end of 
2025/26. The impact of this has not been factored into the business plan at 
this stage but will be considered as part of the February budget report. 

 
Management of the HRA 

11.12 There is a need to modernise the provision of services to customers through 
the introduction of better digital access.  The previous HRA business plan 
earmarked provisional revenue sums of up to £2m over the next two years to 
facilitate investment in systems to enable this objective to be achieved. 

11.13 A feasibility study is ongoing to review whether the existing housing 
management system is still fit for purpose and to assess how well it will be 
able to facilitate the council’s aspiration of improving digital services for 
customers. To date, investment requirement of £0.15m has been identified.  

11.14 In addition, work on the re-procurement of the repairs and maintenance 
contract is ongoing as the current contract expires in 2026, and is subject to a 
separate report (CAB3473). The business plan allows for additional 
associated cost committed of £0.4m in 2024/25, and a further £0.3m 
estimated commitment in 2025/26. 

Continuing High Costs of New Build Housing 

11.15 Under the self-financing regime, the HRA is a purpose made vehicle for 
delivering new affordable homes and when both interest rates were low and 
stable and construction costs more affordable it was able to build, construct 

Page 30



  CAB3478 
 

 

 

and acquire properties; financing this with rents at 70% of market rent or the 
Local Housing Allowance, whichever was the lower.  

11.16 In delivering an ambitious programme of 1,000 new homes, the HRA business 
plan is now operating with much higher average build costs than in previous 
years, and no longer has the advantage of borrowing at historically low 
interest rates under self-financing from the government.  

11.17 As at the beginning of 2024/25 a total of 268 properties had been completed 
out of the 1000 homes target for 2031/32; a further 4 LAHF purchases 
completed in July 2024, and 4 Council Tax buybacks were agreed in July 
2024. 

11.18 As a result of the ongoing high costs, the Council has followed a strategy of 
acquisition, and as a result been able to add to its housing supply between 
2024/25 and 2028/29 through targeted acquisitions, including a number of 
buybacks (agreed by Cabinet in July 2024), and acquisitions of s106 
affordable homes new build at Twyford (10 homes) and Kings Barton (147 
homes), (currently to be agreed by Cabinet in November). In addition, 
business cases and negotiations on a further 212 properties for 
commissioning or acquisition are underway as at the time of writing. 

11.19 The remaining 520 properties are currently included as an assumption in the 
business plan; No further new build is currently assumed in the business plan 
at this point in time.  

11.20 Currently within the business plan, based on existing new build, and assuming 
the level of saving outlined in this report can be achieved, there is sufficient 
balance within the Major Repairs reserve to allocate to new build, reducing 
the level of initial debt build up and allowing sufficient capacity within the HRA 
business plan to allow for future debt repayment.  

11.21 The primary financial assessment in the evaluation of new homes is a Net 
Present Value (NPV) calculation of all future income and expenditure over a 
typical 35-year period, discounted to current prices. This calculation uses the 
current cost of capital and a risk margin as the discount factor. In addition, the 
council’s standard model includes the residual social value of the housing at 
year 35 on the basis that the asset has been well maintained and has a future 
use and value. There are other criteria such as gross income covering the 
interest cost of borrowing, but the NPV calculation is the key criteria. If it is 
positive then the scheme or development is worth undertaking as it adds 
value, if negative then it requires additional subsidy from within the HRA over 
and above external grant funding or available capital receipts. 

11.22 Since the election of the Labour government a number of restrictions have 
been lifted from the use of Right to Buy receipts with a view to improving the 
viability of new builds. Examples of restrictions lifted include removing the 
50% cap on the use of RTB to finance new build and acquisitions; temporarily 
removing the cap on acquisitions that RTB can be used to finance. Existing 

Page 31



  CAB3478 
 

 

 

schemes are currently being reviewed in light of this and revised business 
cases to be taken forward. 

11.23 The October budget statement has stated that RTB discounts will revert to 
pre-2021 levels, that Councils will be able to retain all RTB receipts to finance 
affordable housing and an additional £500m is to be made available to the 
existing 2021-2026 Affordable Homes Programme to finance new affordable 
housing provision. Further information on new investment to succeed the 
2021 – 2026 programme will be forthcoming in the next government spending 
review. 

11.24 In addition to the reduction in discounts, the cost floor applied to RTB sales of 
new build (which ensures purchase price does not fall below construction 
costs) will be extended from the current 15 years to 30 years. The impact of 
these changes is expected to reduce the number of sales in the longer term, 
however this has not yet been modelled. A wider consultation on the future of 
the RTB scheme is expected to take place in the near future. 

11.25 Subject to the proposals in this report, the HRA business plan has capacity to 
fund delivery of 1,000 homes by 2032/33. At this stage the business plan 
does not assume further homes are delivered in the period between 2032/33 
and the end of the business plan. 

Revenue Pressures 

11.26 In the process of closing the Council’s 2023/24 HRA accounts, and through 
the standard monitoring processes, a number of revenue pressures have 
been identified and, where these are unavoidable, have built into the HRA 
business plan. The table below summarises the pressures facing the HRA 
currently: 

Issue 
Pressure 

£'000 

Increase in R&M Expenditure accounting for 
historic RPI adjustment and growth in repairs 
volumes 

         1,076  

Contribution to Major Repairs reserve - 
increased assumption based on 2023/24 outturn              365  

Service pressures              295  

Self assessment of consumer standards 
compliance and service improvements             250  

Total pressures 1,986 

11.27 The key pressure is the ongoing impact of repairs and maintenance costs. 
During the 2023/24 closedown, a historic issue was identified whereby RPI 
increases set out in the contract had not been cumulatively applied, resulting 
in an overspend of £2m on repairs. At that point in time, the impact of this on 
future years was not fully understood.  

11.28 The cumulative nature of the RPI adjustment effectively means that the 
repairs budgets have been under-provided for a number of years. The 

Page 32



  CAB3478 
 

 

 

diagram below demonstrates the existing budget trajectory and the corrected 
trajectory had RPI been correctly applied. 

 

11.29 The correction of the cumulative RPI in year for 2024/25 was estimated to be 
£0.7m over and above the increases already budgeted for. The table below 
demonstrates how the budget has increased, and the actual increase required 
had the RPI calculation been implemented correctly. The budgets therefore 
require rebasing to allow for this, in addition to the standard RPI uplift 
assumption.  

11.30 In addition to RPI adjustment, the Council has seen growth in demand for 
repairs over the last two years. Across the entire HRA, the volume of jobs 
completed and including work-in-progress has increased by approximately 
30%; however this can be broken down across reactive repairs, cyclical 
maintenance, disabled adaptations and the capital programme, and more 
accurately assessed by taking only financially complete jobs as demonstrated 
in the following table: 

 

No of Financially 
Completed jobs 

Increase in Reactive repairs Main contractor 8.23% 

Increase in Voids 5% 

Increase in cyclical maintenance 23.82% 
Decrease in Disabled Adaptions revenue 
repairs (commensurate increase in capital) 

-14.59% 

Increase in Capital programme 50.59% 

    
Increase in financially complete across 
HRA 18.13% 

 

 -

 1,000,000

 2,000,000

 3,000,000

 4,000,000

 5,000,000

 6,000,000

 7,000,000

 8,000,000

 9,000,000

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 Budget 24/25 Business Plan 25/6

Impact of RPI backdate

Reactive, voids & cyclical budgets With increase in job load  With Impact of RPI Backdate

Page 33



  CAB3478 
 

 

 

11.31 The level of reactive repairs completed and paid for in 2023/24 increased by 
approximately 8% in 2024/25. This is equivalent to 1,089 jobs at an average 
cost of £275; equating to £0.3m additional cost.   

11.32 The repairs and maintenance contract is subject to a procurement exercise 
(report CAB3463 refers). The business plan does not make any allowance for 
any changes to the repairs and maintenance budget that may arise from the 
outcome of the procurement, however there is a risk that this may impact the 
estimates. 

11.33 The Capital programme will invariably see changes in the number of jobs 
dependent on the level of planned repairs in a given year. The increase in 
capital jobs can largely be attributed to the increasing volume of work on 
retrofit. 

11.34 Depreciation: The depreciation charge is notoriously difficult to estimate 
accurately, as the actual charge for the year is calculated based on both 
component cost of assets and valuation of properties. As the valuation for 
2025/26 depreciation charge will not be undertaken until 31st March 2025, it is 
not possible to provide a perfectly accurate figure. However, recognising that 
depreciation charges have been significantly higher in recent years, the 
charge in the business plan has been increased accordingly. 

11.35 The key service pressures include the cost of regulation following the 
introduction of a charge to registered providers to finance the increasing cost 
of regulation by the Regulator for Social Housing (RSH); increases in the cost 
of services provided by the general fund, and other minor service cost 
increases.  

11.36 The business planning process has identified a need to increase capital 
resource for reactive capital compliance work. It is impossible to forecast this 
need as it will be reliant on the outcomes of risk assessments or changing 
regulation. Given this pressure, the business plan has built in £0.2m capital 
resource per annum for future years, recognising that this will need reprofiling 
as works are identified. 

Revenue Savings Proposals 

11.37 The previous business plan introduced a number of savings in order to 
increase the capacity of the HRA to finance the additional investment in 
retrofit. In order to maintain this borrowing capacity, and to ensure the HRA 
does not fall into deficit in the medium term, savings are therefore required to 
achieve this outcome.   

11.38 A savings target of £2m per annum has been established in order to mitigate 
the pressures outlined above. Officers have been meeting on a regular basis 
during 2024/25 to identify and quantify potential opportunities. The table at 
appendix 2 provides the detailed list of proposed savings, of which £1.6m is 
ongoing into future years and £0.4m one-off for 2025/26, and includes a 
current RAG rating against their current expected achievability. 

Page 34



  CAB3478 
 

 

 

11.39 Savings proposals have been designed to; reduce the cost of maintenance 
where possible without impacting on the quality of repairs; to reduce budgets 
for which there are no statutory requirements to provide; and to improve cost 
recovery where possible and to reduce budgets where historic underspend 
exists. 

11.40 The scale of savings to be made inevitably means that there is a degree of 
associated risk. Savings proposals have been risk rated accordingly. Potential 
mitigations, if savings cannot be made immediately, are: 

• Reducing the proposed investment budget (with potential 
consequences for service improvement) 

• Reducing working balance (a one off increase is expected in 
2024/25 due to capitalisation of EOT claim of £0.8m in 2024/25) 

• Reducing the capital programme. 

Asset disposals 

11.41 Barnes House is vacant and has been used previously to provide temporary 
accommodation in the HRA. Cabinet agreed to the disposal of this asset in 
February 2024. However, this is being reconsidered at present as to whether 
to retain and use for TA to relieve pressure on homelessness prevention 
options. A viability assessment of costs of works required against the net rent 
generated shows that the property would not pay for itself. As homeless 
provision is not an HRA service it would not be appropriate for the HRA to 
subsidise the costs of works. Further consideration is required as to whether 
the Council’s general fund should appropriate the property as a means of 
offsetting temporary accommodation costs or if disposal takes place by year 
end. 

11.42 The business plan also assumed two further strips of development land per 
year for the next eight years will be disposed.  These sites, that are 
considered too small and uneconomic to develop within the HRA, have 
already been identified. These assets will be proceeding to auction during in 
late 2024/25.  

11.43 Lastly, the business plan assumes that the HRA will identify and dispose of  
further surplus social housing assets every year for the following eight years.  
These assets will be identified by looking at their long-term fit in terms of 
demand/cost to maintain and suitability to retro fit to required standards, and 
work has commenced via a project group on identifying suitable assets. This 
is estimated that it will create additional capital receipts of £500k per year, but 
will be reprofiled within the business plan as and when specific sites and 
timescales are identified.  

11.44 The capital receipts generated by asset sales will be reinvested back into the 
HRA capital programme. If sales receipts are not achieved, the borrowing 
requirement for the capital programme will increase.  

Page 35



  CAB3478 
 

 

 

Sewage treatment works 

11.45 The HRA is responsible for the operation of a number of small sewage 
treatment works, septic tanks, and cesspools, which provide private sewage 
treatment connections for 394 council tenants and 367 private homes. The 
Sewage Treatment Works encompass 36 small sewage treatment works 
(including septic tanks), 19 pumping stations (9 are isolated and 10 within 
curtilage of treatment works) and 21 cesspools. The sewage treatment works 
range in size from small works serving 4 properties to larger works serving 85 
properties. The septic tanks and cesspools serve between 1 and 8 properties. 

11.46 There is currently an under-recovery by the HRA of the annual cost of 
operating these treatment plants.  

11.47 The council should be seeking to fully-recover the total cost of providing 
sewage treatment services to private residents, so that these services are not 
subsidised by council tenants. The council is also taking action to reduce the 
running cost by investing in sites with high operating costs. This will reduce 
the cost to the HRA in the long term; the impact of this will be reflected int e 
plan when savings can be quantified. 

11.48 The proposal for 2025/26 is to increase sewerage charges in line with 
proposed water charge increases to be confirmed by OFWAT, currently 
expected at 10% in 2025/26 and 44% by 2029, while further work takes place 
on options to move to full cost recovery. This will reduce subsidy in 2024/25 
by £10k, increasing to £50k by 2029/30. 

Rent increases and charges in 2025-26 and beyond 

11.49 The current rent setting regime is based on annual rent increases of CPI+1% 
and this applies to 2025-26. The Government is launching a consultation on 
rent increase policy from 2026/27, to run until December 2024, but has 
indicated in the October budget statement that there is an intention to agree 
CPI plus 1% increases for at least the next five years.  

11.50 The business plan currently assumes that the current rent policy will continue 
until 2027/28. 

11.51 A CPI+1% rent increase would mean the average weekly social rent for 
existing tenants will be £126.87 a week, an increase of £3.48 per week. The 
average weekly affordable rent for existing tenants will be £197.63 a week. 
Although the average rent has gone up in line with CPI, the overall average 
has fallen and this is a result partially due to new homes coming onstream 
since 2023/24, and the impact of service charges (which forms part of the rent 
calculation for affordable rents). The impact of the increases is shown in table 
1 below. 

Table 1- indicative weekly rents in 2024-25 compared to 2023-24 for existing 
tenants  

Page 36



  CAB3478 
 

 

 

 

11.52 The average HRA social rent for new tenants from April 2024 will be different 
and this reflects the fact that new tenants pay the formulae rent and that this 
wasn’t capped in 2023-24. Indicative average weekly rents for new social 
tenants are shown below in table 2. It is proposed that the rents for new 
affordable rent tenants will be let provisionally at 80% of market rent if the 
property meets the required minimum energy efficiency requirements.  

Table 2 – Average formula rents for new tenants 

 

Service charges 

11.53 In 2023/24, alongside the capped rent increase, the council approved a one-
off discretionary limit on tenant service charge increases of 7%. Considering 
the budget pressures that the HRA investment programme faces and to align 
it with the general fund and the outcome of ongoing savings programmes, it is 
proposed to revert to full cost recovery from 2024-25, where this is possible. 

11.54 The cost recovery exercise indicated a number of charges that would increase 
significantly, where this is the case it is proposed to phase or cap the increase 
to ensure increases are acceptable. 

Shared ownership rents 

11.55 The HRA business plan assumes that 30% of all future new homes 
development will be delivered as shared ownership. The Government have 
prescribed that any new shared ownership development that is either s106 or 
Homes England grant funded should have leases that base annual rent 
reviews on CPI+1% (where previously these were upward-only based on 
RPI+0.5%). The proposed changes will have a floor of 0% if the CPI is minus 
1% or lower. It was agreed in 2024/25 that this methodology will be applied to 
all shared ownership properties. 

 

Social Rents

Size Bedsit Bedroom 1 Bedroom 2 Bedroom 3 Bedroom 4 Bedroom 5 Bedroom 6 Total

Avge Wkly Rent 2024-25 90.52 107.61 123.79 140.25 150.87 174.45 171.47 123.39

Avge Wkly Rent 2025-26 91.31 110.75 127.53 144.08 155.13 179.16 176.1 126.87

increase per week @ 2.7% 0.87% 2.92% 3.02% 2.73% 2.82% 2.70% 2.70% 2.82%

Affordable Rents

Size Bedsit Bedroom 1 Bedroom 2 Bedroom 3 Bedroom 4 Bedroom 5 Bedroom 6 Total

Avge Wkly Rent 2024-25 168.4 199.33 234.11 258.03 252.27 247.91 199.45

Avge Wkly Rent 2025-26 160.32 198.43 233.37 266.86 259.08 254.6 197.63

increase per week @ 2.7% -4.80% -0.45% -0.32% 3.42% 2.70% 2.70% -0.91%

Formula Rents

Size Bedsit Bedroom 1 Bedroom 2 Bedroom 3 Bedroom 4 Bedroom 5 Bedroom 6 Total

Avge Wkly Rent 2024-25 96.85 111.98 129.96 145.94 159.17 182.39 177.85 128.84

Avge Wkly Rent 2025-26 97.97 116.23 133.94 151.53 165.11 187.32 182.65 133.37

increase per week @ 2.7% 1.16% 3.80% 3.06% 3.83% 3.73% 2.70% 2.70% 3.52%

Page 37



  CAB3478 
 

 

 

12 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  

12.1 The council could consider investing less in customers’ homes than is 
required to achieve the regulatory requirement of EPC C by 2030. This is not 
recommended as it would breach the regulatory requirements and in addition 
would not support the council’s policy objective of being greener faster.  

12.2 The council could also seek increased revenue savings than those identified 
in this report so as to provide investment capacity in the HRA. At this time the 
level of revenue savings identified are achievable and will not lead to a 
reduction in the quality of service delivered. Investment in improving the digital 
access to services may generate efficiencies in the future that can be realised 
without detriment to services. Therefore, increased revenue savings are not 
recommended at this time. 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:- 

CAB3477 (EXEMPT) Acquisition of affordable homes Hazely Rd Twyford  

CAB3485 Acquisition of affordable homes at Kings Barton Winchester 

CAB3473 Procurement of Repairs & Maintenance term contract 

CAB3465 HRA Outturn 2023/24 

CAB3445 HRA Budget 2024/25 

CAB3432 HRA Business Plan and Budget Options – November 2023 

 

Other Background Documents:- 

None 

 APPENDICES: 

Appendix 1 Summary Business Plan 

Appendix 2 Savings Proposals 

Appendix 3 Business Plan Metrics 

 

Page 38



  CAB3478 
 

 

 

Appendix 1 

Summary Business Plan  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 2029/30

HRA HRA HRA HRA HRA HRA

Budget Business Plan Business Plan Business Plan Business Plan Business Plan Business Plan

Income £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Net Dwelling Rents 34,481,320 34,502,857 34,957,908 36,687,507 39,770,669 42,039,681 43,847,531

Non Dwelling Rents 400,799 234,437 242,217 247,061 252,002 257,042 262,183

Charges, contributions for services and facilities 2,140,979 2,595,942 2,825,792 2,892,955 2,961,806 3,032,389 3,104,749

37,023,098 37,333,236 38,025,917 39,827,523 42,984,477 45,329,112 47,214,463

Expenditure

Repairs and maintenance -6,579,400 -7,554,078 -7,815,589 -8,066,446 -8,313,534 -8,542,179 -8,773,798

Supervision and management -10,213,008 -10,433,053 -10,755,187 -10,989,590 -11,229,261 -11,474,321 -11,724,897

Special services -3,125,237 -2,375,609 -2,353,918 -2,439,560 -2,529,377 -2,664,601 -2,786,002

Sewerage -504,583 -568,370 -567,693 -587,565 -608,003 -629,024

One off investments -1,000,000 -1,000,000 -1,470,927 -295,437 -275,565 -278,159 -280,805

(Increase)/decrease in provision for bad or doubtful debts -111,000 -111,000 -111,599 -115,216 -119,266 -125,383 -132,824

Depreciation and impairment of fixed assets -9,973,000 -10,317,000 -10,573,633 -10,887,541 -11,245,612 -11,764,832 -12,199,372

Debt management costs -9,243 -6,615 -6,654 -7,665 -9,150 -10,692 -11,576

Net cost of services 6,012,210 5,031,298 4,370,040 6,458,375 8,675,147 9,860,942 10,676,165

Net interest cost/Item 8 -7,716,520 -5,265,835 -6,346,419 -6,519,654 -7,737,791 -9,576,640 -10,561,442

Provision for repayment of loans -230,944 -230,944 -230,944 -230,944 0 -230,944

Surplus / (deficit) for the year -1,704,310 -465,480 -2,207,323 -292,222 706,412 284,302 -116,221

Current capital shortfall 17,624,000                16,784,950                

HRA Balance Brought Forward 14,095,000 14,095,000 13,629,520 11,422,196 11,129,974 11,836,386 12,120,688

HRA Balance Carried Forward 12,390,690 13,629,520 11,422,196 11,129,974 11,836,386 12,120,688 12,004,467

2024.25

Page 39



  CAB3478 
 

 

 

Appendix 2 Proposed revenue savings 2025/26 onwards 

Proposal 
2025/26 
Saving 

Potential 
future 
year 

savings 

One/off 
or 

ongoing 

Risk 
rating 

Review of General Fund recharges to the 
HRA 

150   Ongoing Amber 

Sewage charges subsidy reduction. If 
OFWAT allow water utility bills to increase 
above inflation then Council policy is to 
mirror any increases and as such the 
subsidy provided will reduce 
commensurately 

10 45 Ongoing Amber 

Review of Voids contracts provision 
Detailed review of voids costs suggests 
that in some cases costs can be reduced 
by procurement outside basket rates 

350   Ongoing Amber 

Implementation of Repairs recharge policy. 
This is subject to implementation of repairs 
recharge policy which supports the repair 
and maintenance contract procurement. To 
be considered at the February cabinet 
committee housing  

50   Ongoing Amber 

Damp and mould in house service - 
increase capacity. This is a nil cost 
proposal to set up an inhouse service to 
undertake mould wash and associated 
work rather than contract out. This will be 
costed and presented as part of February 
budget setting  

 0   Ongoing Red 

Discontinue Tenants incentive budget. This 
is a budget to reward customers for 
moving from a larger to smaller property. 
Many customers decide to make such a 
move without the incentive of payment and 
thus this budget can be withdrawn. If 
tenants face hardship in moved 
discretionary housing payments exist to 
help fund the move. 

65   Ongoing Green 

Reduce Tenant involvement budget. This 
will reduce the funding for activity and 
events to involve tenants and residents 

40   Ongoing Green 

Reduce Training budget. The training 
budget is regularly underspent by this level 
and as such existing training requirements 
can be met from the reduced budget 

50   Ongoing Green 

Page 40



  CAB3478 
 

 

 

To employ a Quantity Surveyor to drive 
cost control savings. This saving is the net 
after employment costs of a Quantity 
surveyor is employed to challenge 
contractors costs of works when invoiced.  

100   Ongoing Red 

Reduce consultancy budget from New 
Homes. This will reduce the budget for 
feasibility on new development to be 
undertaken by the Council. This is 
consistent with the strategic move to 
acquisition of new homes and reducing 
direct development activity. 

100   Ongoing Amber 

New Homes deletion of vacant posts. This 
is the deletion of funded vacant posts. 

120   Ongoing Amber 

Discontinue white goods budget. This 
budget was used to purchase new white 
goods for tenants when they moved into 
homes if they were unable to finance 
themselves. In future customers facing this 
issue will be supported with recycled or 
white goods from charities. 

25   Ongoing Green 

Disrepair process review. This reflects a 
more proactive approach to achieving 
agreement to disrepair cases early on so 
as to mitigate costs of fees for the Council. 

0 50 Ongoing   

IT contingency budget reduction. This is 
reduction in budget due t the repair and 
maintenance contract procurement 
intending to seek IT solutions from 
suppliers as part of the contract. 

400   One-off Green 

Voice scale end contract 2025/6 half year. 
This contract supports income recovery 
and the performance achieved to date 
does not require on going use of this 
service 

20   Ongoing Red 

Service charge full cost recovery review. 
This reflects the costs of ensuring that full 
costs of service charges are recovered 
from those customers who enjoy them. 

250   Ongoing Amber 

Increased charges for catering at Chesil 
Lodge. At present the HRA provides a 
significant subsidy to the cost of meals for 
those who enjoy them at Chesil lodge. This 
proposal aims to reduce that subsidy by 
passing more costs onto the Chesil lodge 
residents 

20   Ongoing Red 

Rent convergence updated budget 
assumption. This reflects the modelling of 

100   Ongoing Green 

Page 41



  CAB3478 
 

 

 

the turnover of properties next year that 
will be let at formula rent levels. 

Reduction in postage. As the service 
moves towards digital communications 
with customers this budget can be reduced 
commensurately 

20   Ongoing Amber 

Total 1,870  95     

  

Page 42



  CAB3478 
 

 

 

Appendix 3  Key metrics in the business plan 

 

 
 

 

 
 

Financial year External Debt

Capital 

Finance 

requirement

Capital 

Charges

Debt 

repayment Net Income

Revenue 

Expenditure

Capital 

programme New Build

Capital 

funding 

shortfall

Working 

Balance

2024.25 185,912         170,067      5,272         231            37,223 32,185 17,389 8,130 13,630

2025.26 140,379         168,836      6,353         231            37,914 33,538 17,368 15,749 17,624 11,422

2026.27 169,148         188,143      6,527         231            39,690 33,224 17,571 23,687 16,785 11,130

2027.28 203,455         235,414      7,747         231            42,865 34,181 17,641 54,718 11,836

2028.29 250,726         251,954      9,587         -             45,204 35,332 16,608 23,793 12,121

2029.30 268,035         273,568      10,573       231            47,082 36,394 16,627 28,385 12,004

2030.31 289,649         298,277      11,732       231            49,910 37,555 13,931 35,355 12,397

2031.32 314,358         300,682      12,590       231            50,858 38,520 9,136 15,905 11,914

2032.33 316,763         300,451      12,877       292            52,299 39,508 8,857 11,404 11,537

2033.34 316,532         300,220      12,719       231            53,309 40,341 8,813 11,555

2034.35 316,301         299,989      12,479       279            54,334 41,208 9,956 11,923

2035.36 316,070         298,980      12,461       1,580         56,383 42,095 11,083 12,172

2036.37 315,061         298,187      12,215       985            56,376 43,002 12,269 12,346

2037.38 314,268         297,251      12,139       1,139         57,399 43,931 12,292 12,537

2038.39 313,332         296,008      11,842       1,472         58,440 44,881 9,225 12,783

2039.40 312,090         294,394      11,580       1,875         59,501 45,853 16,704 12,976

2040.41 310,475         292,445      11,302       2,241         60,581 46,848 10,115 13,166

2041.42 308,526         289,021      10,944       3,741         62,804 47,865 15,263 13,419

2042.43 305,102         286,403      10,767       2,982         62,800 48,907 14,274 13,563

2043.44 302,485         283,464      10,406       3,344         63,941 49,973 13,052 13,781

2044.45 299,545         280,120      9,999         3,794         65,103 51,064 13,369 14,027

2045.46 296,201         276,324      9,538         4,289         66,286 52,181 11,960 14,304

2046.47 292,405         272,032      9,053         4,836         67,491 53,324 14,294 14,582

2047.48 288,114         266,110      8,672         6,508         69,966 54,493 13,853 14,875

2048.49 282,191         260,839      8,100         5,924         69,968 55,691 11,925 15,128

2049.50 276,920         255,012      7,625         6,514         71,241 56,916 18,132 15,314

2050.51 271,093         248,674      7,190         7,060         72,538 58,171 15,923 15,431

2051.52 264,755         241,905      6,677         7,558         73,858 59,455 15,312 15,599

2052.53 257,986         233,409      6,259         9,343         76,566 60,769 16,983 15,794

2053.54 249,490         225,685      5,682         8,657         76,546 62,089 17,166 15,911

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



18 November 2024 WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL – THE BHP COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME   

 
 

 Item Lead Officer Date for BHP  Date for Cabinet 

Meeting 26 November 2024 
 

1   Disabled Facilities Grants: Policy Review (presentation) Karen Thorburn 26 Nov 2024   
 
 
 

2   HRA business plan & budget options Simon Hendey 26 Nov 2024  20 Nov 2024  
 
 
 

Meeting 11 February 2025 
 

3   Summary of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund and Rural England Fund programmes (TBC) Andrew Gostelow 11 Feb 2025   
 
 
 P

age 45

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 17 September 2024
	Minutes

	7 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan & Budget Options
	8 To note the Current Work Programme.

